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. \ T
Accounting Officer's Respansibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting records and is
responsible for the content and integrity of the audited annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. it is
the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the audited annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The extemal auditors
are engaged to express an independent opinion on the audited annual financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data.

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The audited annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the municipality
and placed considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting officer to meet these
responsibilities, the set standards for internal control aims to reduce the risk of ervor or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in al reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across
the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the audited annual financial statements.
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
deficit. .

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2023 and, in the light of this review and the
current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future.

The audited annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the municipality is a going concern and that the municipality has neither
the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

I would like to bring to your attention the following material matters to your attention:

| certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of councillors as disclosed in note 31 to these financial statements are within the upper limits
of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, read with the Remuneration of Public Office
Bearers Act, Act 20 of 1998 and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government's determination in accordance with the Act.

The external auditor, being the Auditor General of South Africa, is responsible for auditing and expressing an opinion on the municipality's
annual financial statements.

The audited annual financial statements set out on pages 7 - 94, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved.

Ms. T.S. Ntsalla
Acting Municipal Manager
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Restated”
Notes
Assets
Current Assets
inventories 3 1874 495 2137 082
Statutory receivables 4 81 286 952 64 841 965
Trade receivables from non-exchange transactions 5 247 600 597 262
VAT receivable 6 2761 258 1765934
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 7 24 559 402 24 491 189
Security held in Eskom 8 4517 888 4 373 560
Cash and cash equivalents 9 236731914 224 422 320
351979509 322629312
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 10 4 960 309 4 960 309
Property, plant and equipment 11 1121808 468 1 108 608 549
Property, plant and equipment - Capitalised restoration cost 12 12 585 130 13 098 876
Intangible assets 13 93 897 403 317
Heritage assets 14 870 000 -
1440 317 804 1128 072 051
Total Assets 1492 297 313 1 450 701 363
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 15 55641925 51180689
Consumer deposits 16 390 324 369 024
Employee benefit obligation 17 1174 000 1 248 000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 18 12 339 858 4 460 918
Provisions 19 15 162 167 16 189 592
84 708 274 73 448 223
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 17 16 388 003 15 249 003
Provisions AUDIT ey 19 22439174 17 971648
OR GENERAL | 38827177 33 220 651
Total Liabilities SOUTH AFRICA | 123535451 106 668 874
Net Assets 3 U N OV 2 1368 761 862 1 344 032489
Reserves 022
Revaluation reserve | 20 1733695671 230445832
Accumulated surplus 1195392 291 1 113 586 657
Total Net Assets 1368 761 862 1 344 032489

* See Note 54
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Statement of Financial Performance

2022 2021
Restated”
Notes

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 21 68 145618 68 588 657
Rental of facilities and equipment 22 1158 358 1241198
Agency services 23 1649 721 1769 769
Licences and permits 24 1756 879 2016795
Other income 25 1307 925 1030123
Interest revenue 26 25831263 22364740
Total revenue from exchange transactions 99 949 764 97 011 282
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue .
Property rates 27 48 725788 46 575 491
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 28 432883059 389461475
Fine receipts 29 2 058 439 762 403
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 483 667 286 446 799 369
Total revenue 583617 050 543 810 651
Expenditure
Employee related costs 30 (131 389 637) (121973 165)
Remuneration of councillors 3 (21443 575) (19 979 057)
Remuneration of traditional leaders 32 (129 728) {329 090)
Depreciation and amortisation 33 (52798 286) (42 843 345)
Finance costs 34 (34 877) (14 262)
Material and stores 35 (6075204) (5757 481)
Bulk purchases 36 (58 160 536) (48 196 231)
Contracted services 37 (101 862 867) (93 988 662)
General Expenses 38 (40 022 588) (31 976 501)
Total expenditure (411 917 298) (365 057 794)
Operating surplus 171 699752 178 752 857
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities (78 262 784) (40623 548)
Debt impairment 38 (17 650 618) (18 719 969}
Fair value adjustments 40 - 1262 067
Bad debts written off 41 - (8 617 754)
Impairment loss 56 (1113 241) -
Landfill site provision contributions (4 467 527) (3 379 884)

(101 494170) (70 079 088)
Surplus for the year 70 205582 108 673 769

* See Note 54
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Revaluation Accumulated

reserve

surplus

Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

Balance at 01 July 2020 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year restated

Total changes

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2021

Changes in net assets

Impairment losses on revalued capital assets

Transfer from Revaluation Reserve to Accumulated Surplus

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets
Surplus for the year

Total recognised income and expenses for the year
Total changes

Balance at 30 June 2022

Note

230445832 1001688618 1232 134 450

3224 274

3224274

230445832 1004 912892 1 235 358 724

- 108673765 108673765
- 108673765 108673765
230445832 1113 586 665 1 344 032 497

(45 476 217) - (45476 217)
(11600044} 11600 044 -
(57 076261) 11600044 (45476 217)

- 70205582 70 205 582
(57076 261) 81805626 24 729 365
(57076 261) 81805626 24 720365

173 369 571 1 195 392291 1 368 761 862

20

* See Note 54
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Cash Flow Statement

2022 2021
Restated*
Note(s)

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Sale of goods and services
Grants

Interest income

Other receipts

Payments
Employee costs and suppliers
Finance costs

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

Purchase of heritage assets

Security held in Eskom

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

84 341 752 86 801764
440761999 402 169 500
26931 263 22 364 740
6 646 822 5989 375

557 681836 517 335 379

(355 286 759) (298 867 692)
(34 877) (14 262)

(355 331 636) (298 881 954)
43 202350200 218453425

1 (188 976 279) (147 638 114)

11 - 582 777
13 (50 000) -
14 (870 000)

(144 328) (172 254)
(190 040 607) (147 227 591)

12 309 593 71225834
224 422 321 153 196 487

9 236 731914 224 422 321

30 NOV 2022

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

* See Note 54
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actualamounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 70 532 412 - 70532412 68 145618 (2386 794)
Rental of facilities and equipment 1245 000 - 1245 000 1158 358 (86 642)
Agency services - - - 1649 721 1649721 Note 57
Licences and permits 4 524 684 - 4524 684 1756 879 (2767 805)  Note 57
Other income 1501176 - 1501176 1307 925 (193251)  Note 57
interest received - investment 14 649 996 - 14 649 996 9598 958 (5051 038)  Note 57
Interest Received - Outstanding 11798 772 - 11798 772 16 332 305 4533533 Note 57
debtors
Total revenue from exchange 104 252 04 - 104 252 040 99 949 764 (4 302 276)
fsnsactions AUDITOR GENERAI
Revenue from non-exchange SO UT H AFRI CA
transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 54 088 41F 3 0 N-OV 292288 416 48 725788 (5362628)  Note 57
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 412 784 00§ 31501711 444285715 | 432883 059 (11 402 656)
Fine receipts 2 093 70p - 2093 700 2058 439 (35261)  Note 57
Total revenue from non-exchange 468 966 12! 6T BIT 48B3 667 286 (16 800 545)
transactions
Total revenue 6§73 218 160 31 501 711 604 719 871 583 617 050 (21 102 821)
Expenditure
Employee related costs (132 260 904) - (132260 904) (131 389 637) 871 267 Note §7
Remuneration of councillors (21689 916) - (21689 916) (21 443 575) 246 341 Note 57
Remuneration of traditional leaders (360 564) 160 000 (200 564) (129 728) 70 836
Depreciation, amortisation and (35 300 004) (35 000 000) (70 300 004) (53 910 507) 16 389 497 Note 57
impairment loss
Finance costs - - - (34 877) (34877)  Note 57
Lease rentals on operating lease (1 000 000) {600 000) (1 600 000} (1 508 972) 91 028 Note 57
Stores and materials (7 379 196) 543 424 (6 835772) (6 075 204) 760 568 Note 57
Bulk purchases (50000 000)  (12000000) (62000000} (58 160 536) 3839464
Contracted Services {105 630 024) (6226 837) (111856 861) (101862 867) 9993 994 Note 57
General Expenses (69 725 292) 15 899 798 (53 825 494) (44 251 338) 9574 156 Note 57
Total expenditure (423 345900) (37 223 615) (460 569 515) (418 767 241) 41802 274
Operating surplus 149 872 260 (5721904) 144150356 164 849 809 20 699 453
Loss on disposal of assels and - - - (78262 784) (78 262 784)
liabilities
Debt impairment (6 999 996) - (6 999 996) (17650618)  (10650622)  Note 57
Landfill site provision contribution - - - (4 467 527) (4467 527)  Note 57

{6 999 996) - (6 999 996) (100 380 929) (93 380 933)
Surplus before taxation 142 B72 264 (5 721 904) 137 150 360 64 468 880 (72 681 480)
Actual Amount on Comparable 142 872 264 (5 721 904) 137 150 360 64 468 880 (72 681 480)

Basis as Presented in the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement

Reconcillation
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 1599 995 98 324 1698 319 1874 495 176 176 Note 57
Statutory receivables 88 896 266 - 83 896 266 81286 952 (7608314)  Note 57
Trade receivables from non- - - - 247 600 247 600 Note 57
exchange transactions
VAT receivable - - - 2761258 2761258 Note 57
Consumer debtors 33 127 150 - 33127 150 24 559 402 (8567748)  Note 57
Security held in Eskom - - - 4517 888 4517 888 Note 57
Cash and cash equivalents 140 943 479 (290338779) 111€04700 235731914 125127 214 Note 57
264 566 890 (20 240 455) 235326435 351 979 509 116 653 074
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 2327 242 - 2327 242 4 960 309 2633067 Note 57
Property, plant and equipment 1148 450 978 9879495 11568330473 1121808468  (36522005)  Note 57
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 12585 130 12585130
Capitalised restoration cost
Intangible assets 590 141 (96 501) 493 640 93 897 (399743)  Note 57
Heritage assets - - - 870 000 870 000
Other non-current assets 1 500 000 - 1500 000 - (1 500 000)
1152 868 361 9782994 11626513556 1140317804 (22 333 551)
Total Assets 1417 435 251 (19457 464) 1397977790 1492 297 313 94 319 523
Liabllities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions (49 939 806) (2175 449) (52115 255) 55 641 925 3526 670 Note 57
Consumer deposits (345 497) - (345 497) 390 324 44 827 Note 57
Employee benefit obligation - - - 1174 000 1174 000
Unspent conditional grants and - - - 12 339 858 12 339 858
receipts
Provisions (11 998 424) - (11 998 424) 15 162 167 3163743 Note 57
(62 283 727) (2175449) (64 459 176) 84 708 274 20 248 098
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation - - - 16 388 003 16 388 003 Note 57
Provisions (29 577 764) - (29 577 764) 22 439174 (7138690)  Note 57
(29 577 764) - (29 577 764) 38 827 177 9 249 413
Total Liabilities (91 861 491) (2175449) (94 036 940) 123 535451 29 498 511
Net Assets 1509 296 742 (17 282012) 1492014730 1368761862 136402820
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to Owners
of Controlling Entity
Resarves
Revaluation reserve (230 445 832) - (230445832) 173369571 (57076 261)  Note 57
Accumulated surplus 1739742574 (17282 012) 1722480562 1195392291 (527068 271)  Note 57
Total Net Assets 1 509 296 742 (17282 012) 1492014730 1 368 761 862 136 402 820

12
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basls

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual

Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services 106 703 989 - 106 703 989 83751763 (22952 226)  Note 57
Grants 412 784 000 29277999 442061999 440761999 (1 300 000)
Interest income 14 649 996 - 14 649 996 25931 263 11 281 267
Other receipts 9 364 562 - 9 364 562 6 646 822 (2 717 740)

543 502 547 29 277 999 5§72 780 546 557 091 847 {15 688 699)
Payments
Suppliers (387 995 720) (2273708) (390 269 428) (360 438 028) 29 831 400
Finance costs - - - (34 877) {34 877)

(387 995 720) (2273708) (390 269 428) (360 472 905) 29 796 523
Net cash flows from operating 155 506 827 27004291 182511118 196 618 942 14107 824
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and (192 872451) (44783 064) (237 655 515) (184 115 021) §3 540 494 Note 57
equipment
Purchase of intangible assets - - - (50 000} {50000)  Note 57
Security held in Eskom - - - (144 328) (144 328)  Note 57
Net cash flows from investing {192 872 451) (44 783 064) (237 655 515) (184 309 349) 53 346 166
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and (37365624)  (17778773) (55144 397) 12309 593 67 453 990
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the 178 309 102 - 178308102 224422 321 46 113 219 Note 57
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the 140943478  (17778773) 123164705 236731914 113567209

end of the year

Reconciliation

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

30 NOV 2021
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Accounting Policies

2022 2021
Notes

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below:

Reference Description

GRAP Framework Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements
GRAP 1 Presentation of financial statements

GRAP 2 Cash flow statements

GRAP 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

GRAP 12 Inventories

GRAP 13 Leases

GRAP 14 Events After the Reporting Date

GRAP 16 Investment Properties

GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting

GRAP 19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)

GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits

GRAP 31 Intangible Assets

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets

GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables

GRAP 109 Accounting by Principles and Agents

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality. All
amounts are rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.2 Golng concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. In preparing the financial statements, management is required
tomake estimates and assumptions that impact on the municipality financial statements once implemented. Actual results
inthe future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements.

1.3 Comparative Information

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been
identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.4 Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA) Implementation and Reclassification

The Municipal Regulations on Standard Chart of Accounts promulgated in terms of Government Gazette 37577 dated 22
April 2014 apply to all municipalities and municipal entities and became effective from 1 July 2017
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1.4 Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (nSCOA) Implementation and Reclassification (continued)

The main objective of this regulation is to provide for a national standard in respect of uniform recording and classification
of municipal budget and financial information at a transaction level by prescribing a standard chart of accounts for
municipalities and municipal entities which:

a) are aligned to the budget formats and accounting standards prescribed for municipalities and municipal entities and with
the standard chart of accounts for national and provincial government; and

b) enable uniform information sets recorded in terms of national norms and standards across the whole of government for
the purposes of national policy coordination and reporting, benchmarking and performance measurement in the local
government sphere.

The impact of this mSCOA regulations affected the municipality's current business processes; transacting and
reporting requirements.

1.5 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application
of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be
material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a standard of
GRAP.

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

The municipality assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment at the
end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus
makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a financial asset.

The impairment for frade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis,
based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at
the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the
portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.

Provisions AUDITOR GENERAL

Provisions were raised and management deterfnin&3 @) B il BREFPhMgnfarmation available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in ngte 19 - Provisions.

Allowance for doubtful debts 3 U NUV 2022

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised i} surplus and deficit when there is opjective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount arjd the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, gomputed at initial recognition.

Debtors from 90 days and above are impaired (debtors less than 90 da;fé are not impaired).
1.6 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, as well as land with no determinable future use. Investment property is recognised as an asset i.e. probable

that future economic benefits will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured
reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. Costs include
costs incurred initially and cost incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part or service a property. If a replacement part
is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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1.6 Investment property (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Investment property is measured using the fair value model. Under the fair value model, investment property is carried at
its fair value at the reporting date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of the property is included in
surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain investment property in the notes to the annual
financial statements (see note).

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
. it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality; and
»  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation
arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent measurement

The following categories of Property, plant and equipment are carried on the revaluation model, being its fair value at the date of
the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses:

- Land and Buildings
- Infrastructure
- Community Assets

The following categories of Property, plant and equipment are carried on the cost model, being the cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses:

- Other property, plant and equipment
- Capital under construction
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1.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Capital under construction is not depreciated as the asset has not been brought into use yet. Land is not depreciated as it is
deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Revaluations are made every 5 years such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The land and buildings are checked against deeds information to ensure that the properties included in the register are owned
and controlled by the municipality.

Market values are analysed to ensure that the value reflect the fair value of the fixed asset concerned. The assets with
significant high market values to their carrying values are assessed for reasonableness as per requirements of GRAP 17,

The market value is split between land and buildings using a 10:80 split respectively.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an indefinite life. Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated on
cost or revalued amount, using the straight line method, to allocate their cost to their residual values over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the assets future economic benefits or service
potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole
asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The depreciation rates are initially based on the following
originally estimated useful lives and thereafter on the estimated remaining useful lives as at year end:

Item Depreciation method
Infrastructure Straight-line
» Road§ z?nd paving 580 years

*  Electricity AUDITOR GENERAIS-Sg years

. Water 15-20 years
¢ Sewerage SOUTH AFRICA 520 years
. Landfill sites 1065 years
. Housing 30 years

. Pedestrian mall 3 0 NUV 2022 20 years
Community Strpight-line
° Improvements 2590 years

. Recreational facilities 1060 years

. Security 1080 years
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1.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Components Straight-line
. Doors and iron 08-15 years
. Doors and iron (extensive) 15-30 years
4 Fittings 05-15 years
. Fittings and fixtures 15-30 years
¢+ Windows and glazing 08-15 years
*  Windows and glazing (extensive) 15-30 years
*  External roof structurefcovering 15-35 years
. Floor finish 05-15 years
*  Wall structure (internal) 20-50 years
. Electrical 10-30 years
Other property, plant and equipment Straight-line
. Buildings 15-75 years
. Specialist vehicles 10 years

. Qther vehicles 05-10 years
o Office equipment 03-07 years
. Furniture and fittings 07-10 years
s Watercraft 15 years

» Bins and containers 05-10 years
. Specialised equipment 10-15 years
. Other plant and equipment 02-15 years
. External wall 20-30 years
. Floor structure 20-40 years
e Wall painting 05-10 years
. Drainage 10-30 years
. Plumbing 10-30 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property. plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting
date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life andfor residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the-use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these
assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash
fiow statement.
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1.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reviewing the useful fife of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recagnised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

1.8 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:

. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

. arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the municipality; and
. the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost:

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided
for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

AUDIT oy
Item o lg%éﬁ%&%%‘et jod Average useful life
Computer software, other WU T fasR e /A ’ 3-5 years
Intangible assets are derecognised: 3 0 NOV 2022

. on disposal; or J
. when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intaqgible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised.

1.9 Financial instruments

The municipality has various types of Financial Instruments and these can be broadly categorised as Financial Assets,
Financial Liabilities or Residual Interests in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. The municipality only
recognises a Financial Instrument when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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1.9 Financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The municipality does not offset a Financial Asset and a Financial Liability unless a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts currently exist and the municipality intends either to setfle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

The Effective Interest Rate Method

The Effective Interest Rate Method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a Financial Asset or a Financial Liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the Financial Instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability.

Amortised cost

Amortised Cost is the amount at which the Financial Asset or Financial Liability is measured at initial recognition minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation, using the Effective Interest Rate Method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or collectability.

Fair value method and assumptions
The fair values of Financial Instruments are determined as follows:

- The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices; and

- If the market for a Financial Asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the municipality establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm'’s length transacticns, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Classification

In accordance with GRAP 104 the Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities of the municipality are classified as follows into the
three categories allowed by this standard:

- Financial assets (or financial liabilities) at amortised cost are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets or current
liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months, which are classified as non-current. Financial assets (or
financial liabilities) at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. After initial recognition financial assets are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method less an allowance for impairment.

- Financial assets (or financial liabilities) at fair value are financial instruments that meet either of the following

conditions:

a. derivatives;

b. combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

¢. instruments held for trading;

d. non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated
at fair value at initial recognition; or

e. financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

- Financial assets (or financial liabilities) at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured,
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1.9 Financial instruments (continued)

Included under the major classes of financial instruments below, are line items that are separately disclosed in the notes that
do not meet the definition of a financial instrument (such as Prepaid expenses, Payments made in advance etc.). The balances
are clearly identifiable by the naming of the line items. Such items are excluded from the balances disclose in Note 46.

In rare instances, aggregation within a line item of a note might contain both financial instruments and balances that do not
meet the definition of a financial instrument, In these cases the individual line items would be assessed with reference to its
significance. Where insignificant, non-financial instruments would be included in the aggregated line items that would normally
meet the definition of a financial instrument. this disclosure aggregation was specifically selected to ensure comprehensive
classification.

A financial asset is any asset that is a cash or contractual right to receive cash. The municipality has the following types of
financial assets as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Cash and cash equivalents (*) Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Finance lease receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are both
short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and fixed term deposits that are held with
registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash with banks and call
deposits held with banks.

In accordance with GRAP 104 the Financial Assets of the municipality are all classified as financial assets at amortised cost, ()
except for cash floats and petty cash, which are classified as financial assets at fair value.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity.

There are three main categories of Financial Liabilities, the classification determining how they are measured. Financial
Liabilities may be measured at:

- Financial Liabilities measured at Fair Value;
- Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost; or
- Financial Liabilities measured at Cost.

The entity has the following types of financial liabi tieggemqseﬂ ﬁEg“ﬁEALﬂe ted on the face of the statement of

financial position or in the notes thereto: —
souUTH AFRICA

Category
10 Nwm liability
inancial liability
Financial liability
Financial liability

Class

Other financial fiabilities

Payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

easured at amortised cost
easured at amortised cost
easured at fair value

jeasured at amortised cost

In accordance with GRAP 104 the Financial Liabilitips of the municipality are all c_la\_ssiﬁgid as financial liabilities at amortised
cost, except for Consumer deposits, which are clas tat Tiabilities at fair value.

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank overdrafts are expensed as incurred.
Initial and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of the Financial Asset. Subsequently, these assets are measured at amortised cost using the Effective
Interest Method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an Effective Yield Basis.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Trade and Other Receivables (excluding Value Added Taxation, Prepayments and Operating Lease receivables) and Loans
that have fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as Financial Assets at
Amortised Cost.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value

Financial Assets at Fair Value are initially measured at fair value, excluding directly attributable transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities measured at fair value

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value are stated at fair value, with any resulted gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Financial Liabilities held at Amortised Cost

Any other Financial Liabilities are classified as Other Financial Liabilities (Ali Payables, Loans and Borrowings are classified as
Other Liabilities) and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Trade and Other Payables, Interest-bearing
Debt including Finance Lease Liabilities, Non-interest-bearing Debt and Bank Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate Method. Interest expense is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance by applying the effective interest rate.

Bank Borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing short-term bank loans, repayable on demand and overdrafts are recorded at
the proceeds received. Finance costs are accounted for using the Accrual Basis and are added to the carrying amount of the
bank borrowing to the extent that they are not settled in the period that they arise.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence of impairment of Financial Assets (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor). If there is such evidence the recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with GRAP 104.

An allowance for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the municipality will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the financial asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Cash flows relating to
short-term receivables are not discounted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Initially receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions are valued at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less an allowance for impairment. The aliowance is made in
accordance with GRAP 104, whereby the recoverability of receivables is assessed individually and then collectively after
grouping the assets in financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Government accounts are not provided for as
such accounts are regarded as receivable. An estimate is made for impairment of receivables, based on past default
experience of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Amounts are written off in the year during which they are identified as
irrecoverable. Amounts receivable within 12 months from the date of reporting are classified as current.

Annual impairment testing is conducted on all Receivable balances. The effects of the annual impairment testing are
accounted for against the Provision for Bad Debts Allowance. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance against the Reversal of Impairment Loss/(Impairment Loss) on
Receivables. Accounts identified and written-off during the year is recognised against Bad Debts Written Off in the Statement
of Financial Performance.
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1.9 Financial instruments {continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Financial Performance to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does riot exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment rot been recognised.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The municipality derecognises Financial Assets only when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, except when
Council approves the write-off of Financial Assets due to non-recoverability.

If the municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the municipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the municipality retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
municipality continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset when the municipality has a legally enforceable right to do so and
expects to settle or recover the instruments on a net basis.

Financial liabilities

The municipality derecognises Financial Liabilities when, and anly when, the municipality's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

The municipality recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.10 Statutory receivables

identification

g’ébrrog GENERA;
Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from gﬂﬂﬂﬁme Egu

by another entity in cash or another financigl asset.

tions, or similar means, and require settlement

Carrying amount is the amount at which arf asset is recogrqs(?agizwyateme it of financial position.

The cost method is the method used to adcount tor statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured at their
transaction amount, plus any accrued intgrest or other charges (where applicgble) and, less any accumulated impairment losses
and any amounts derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legisiation, Supporting regulations or similar means.

The transaction amount for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or charged in accordance
with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows:

. if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions;

. if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes
and transfers); or

. if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or another Standard of GRAP, the
receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will fiow to the entity and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably.

Initial measurement
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1.10 Statutory receivables (continued)
The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount.
Subsequent measurament

The municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any:

. interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);

. impairment losses; and

° amounts derecognised.

Accrued interest

Where the municipality levies interest on the outstanding balance of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount after
initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the nominal interest rate.

Interest on statutory receivables is recognised as revenue in accordance with the policy on Revenue from exchange
transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions {Taxes and transfers), whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipality is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy
additional charges on overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in
“Accrued interest” above, as well as the relevant policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on Revenue from
non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired.

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimum. the following indicators:
. Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling, business
rescue or an equivalent. )
. It is probable that the debtor will enter sequestration, liquidation or other financial re-organisation.
. A breach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where
levied).
. Adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in
debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

if there is an indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measures the impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the losses is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

In estimating the future cash flows, an municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in
future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the entity discounts the estimated future cash
flows using a rate that reflects the current risk-free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific to the statutory receivable, or group
of statutory receivables, for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted either directly or by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment
does not result in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying
amount of the receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recagnised at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition
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1.10 Statutory receivables (continued)

The mumclpalsty derecognises a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:

the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;

. the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or

. the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks znd rewards of ownership of the receivable, has
transferred control of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the receivable; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those
transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. The entity considers whether any newly created rights
and obligations are within the scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or another Standard of GRAP. Any
difference between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recognised. are recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.11 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through -exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. /"’%ﬁ
GENER

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of ¢ stﬂ«‘e"%ﬁealls—fbﬁm%t where the following applies:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current repﬁcgnent cost where they are held for;
. distribution at no charge or for a naminal chargg; or Q;N |
. consumption in the production process of goodd to be disa'in.lt al no charge or fonlla nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the éstlmated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange br distribution. .I

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs =Ton { th_e;_reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipality.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1.13 Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount in the case of non-cash generating

assets), the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, its carrying amount is reduced to the
higher of its recoverable amount and zero. Subsequent to the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation or amortisation
charge for the asset is adjusted to allocate its remaining carrying value, less any residual value, over its remaining useful life.

Impairment losses on receivables are determined based on specific and objective evidence that assets are impaired and is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of assets and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but limited to the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit
or loss.

1.14 Derecognition of assets and liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows have been transferred or have expired or
when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have passed.

All other assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the relevant obligation has either been discharged, cancelled or has expired.

1.15 Employee costs
These are all costs paid by an employer in exchange for services rendered by an employee. These include employee benefits
such as salaries, bonuses, housing allowance, medical and other contributions, which are recognised in the income statement

during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Detailed policies can also be noted under the Employee
Benefits note.

1.16 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the

service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are deait with as defined contribution plans
where the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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1.16 Employee benefits (continued)

Defined henefit plans

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method.
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is
performed at an earlier date.

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on
a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

All Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in surplus or deficit when they occur.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of plan
assets.

1.17 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential wilt be required to
settle the obligation; and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Contingent assets and conti g@U ' fes.are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 45.

1.18 Revenue from exch ng%w ﬁsGENERAL

Revenue from exchange [ransactions refers %mct adcrued to the municipality directly in return for services
rendered/goods sold, the value of ox:mates ofisideration received or receivable.

An exchange transactigh is one in which the murggpahty re
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of go

Eives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
bds, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount T3
an arm’s length transaction.

1 an asset could be exchgnged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in

Recognition
Revenue from exchange transactions is only recognised once all of the following criteria have been satisfied:

a) The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership effective
control over the goods sold;

b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and

¢) ltis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.18 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Measurement

Revenue from exchange transactions is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into
account the amount of any discounts and rebates allowed by the entity. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Service charges relating to electricity are based on consumption. Meters are read on a quarterly basis and are recognised as
revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption are made monthly when meter readings have not been
performed. The provisional estimates of consumption are recoghised as revenue when invoiced. Adjustments to provisional
estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in which meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised
as revenue in the invoicing period.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards is recognised at the point of sale.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each
property that has improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied menthly based on the
recorded number of refuse containers per property.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered by
applying the relevant gazetted tariff. This includes the issuing of licences and permits.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recoghised when substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods is passed to the
consumer.

Revenue arising out of situations where the municipality acts as an agent on behalf of another entity (the principal) is limited to
the amount of any fee or commission payable to the municipality as compensation for executing the agreed services.

1.19 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the municipality received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to
repay the amount.

Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entittement to this revenue arises, Collection charges are recognised
when such amounts are legally enforceable. Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportionate basis.

Fines constitute both spot fines and summonses. Revenue from spot fines and summonses is recognised when the fine is
issued.

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been
met or where the contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment
qualifies for recognition and first becomes available for use by the municipality. Where public contributions have been received
but the municipality has not met the related conditions, a deferred income (liability) is recognised.

Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such items of property, plant and equipment qualifies for
recognition and become available for use by the municipality.

Government grants

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet the
criteria for recognition as an asset. Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is
recognised.

Unspent conditional grants
For all conditional grants, a corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is conditional. The

liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. The unspent conditional grant
liability is disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.
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1.20 Accounting by principals and agents
Identification

An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third
parties on its behalf and for its own benefit,

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity {the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms
of the arrangement.

The assessment of whether a municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a
principal or an agent.

Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties
When the municipality in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the

benefit of another entity, then it is the agent. If the municipality concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the
transactions.

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions witl
. It does not have the power to determine the signifi
. It does not have the ability to use all, or substantial
own benefit.
. it is not exposed to variability in the results of the tr

¥ollqwing criteria are present:
’m,sqgfgrﬁﬁsﬁmﬁpﬂg%zxig \afr::rt\fansaction for its
3.0 NOV 017 |

Where the municipality has been granted specific powers in teriyis of legi¥lation to direct the terms and conditions of
particular transactions, it is not required to consider the criteria &f whether it does not have the pow}’ to determine the

1saction.

significant terms and conditions of the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The municipality applies judgement in
determining whether such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the muricipality is an agent.

Recognition =

The municipality, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a
principal-agent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the
transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.21 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
. overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the
purpose of the main division.

29



Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Accounting Policies

1.21 Unauthorised expenditure (continued)

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.22 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.23 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
economic entity’s supply chain management policy. lrregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.24 Prepayments

The amount is not taken to profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an expense but disclosed as a current asset in
the statement of financial position. The expense is only raised when it is incurred.

1.25 Accumulated Surplus

Included in the accumulated surplus is the previous years profits as well as the effects of changes in accounting policies and
correction of errors.

1.26 iGRAP 1 - Probability of revenue
Initlal Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and these
benefits can be measured.

Subsequent measurement

Subseguently, the collectability of the revenue is assessed and an impairment loss is recognised where appropriate.

1.27 VAT

The Municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on the payments basis. This means that VAT is declared to the South African
RevenL_Je Services as input VAT or output VAT only when payments are made to suppliers or payments are received for goods
or services.

1.28 Budget information

The municipality is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by econemic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2021/07/01 to 2022/06/30.
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1.28 Budget information (continued)

The basis which has been applied in determining material variances is 10%. Income we have only provided reasons where the
municipality has under achieved and for expenditure both over and under achieved where its 10% less or more than budget.
The municipality treats employee costs as a major expense in its statement of financial performance hence we have provided a
reason for that variance ¢f 6%.

1.29 Related parties

Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and/or operating decisions. Key management personnel is defined as the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer and all
other managers reporting directly to the Municipal Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager.

1.30 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources.

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of
financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes. A distinction is made between capital and current commitments.
Commitments are disclosed for:

* Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been appraved and the contract has been awarded at
the reporting date .

* Approved but not yet contracted commltments where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has yet to be
awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the rep

* ltems are classified as commitments wher tbﬁ[yyﬁp mits itself to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of resources

. Rq
» Contracts that are entered into before th repS@i_gm Ag%ﬁﬂqtm s have not yet been received are

disclosed in the disclosure notes to the finfincial statém
= Other commitments for contracts are to pe non- aﬁ' flable or on !Gﬂlab e at significant cost contracts should relate to
something other than the business of the municip ﬁ NOV 2022

1.31 Revaluation reserve

The surplus arising from the revaluatiofy of property, plant and equipment ig credited to a non-distributable reserve. The
revaluation surplus is realised as revalued bi are depreciated, throubth a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the
accumulated surplus/deficit. On disposal, the net revaluat sferred to the accumulated surplus/deficit while gains
or losses on disposal, based on revalued amounts, are credited or ¢ to the statement of financial performance.

1.32 Deferred revenue
The calculation is done on the week commencing 15 June with the assumption that the electricity purchased in the first
and second week of the month will be consumed of the financial year.
An average tariff has been applied for domestic as the municipality is on stepped tariff.
The indigent is not deferred.
1.33 Investment income
Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
1.34 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.35 Segment Reporting
A segment is an activity of an entity:
. that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to
transactions between activities of the same entity);
*  whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that

activity and in assessing its performance; and
. for which separate financial information is available.
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1.35 Segment Reporting (continued)

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

Measurement

Segment information is prepared in conformity with accounting policies applied for preparing and presenting the annual financial
statements. The amount of each segment item reported is the measure reported to management for the purposes of making
decisions about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. Adjustments and eliminations made in
preparing the entity’s financial statements and allocations of revenues and expenses are included in determining reported
segment surplus or deficit only if they are included in the measure of the segment's surplus or deficit that is used by
management. Similarly, only those assets and liabilities that are included in the measures of the segment’s assets and
segment’s liabilities that are used by management are reported for that segment. If amounts are allocated to reported segment
surplus or deficit, assets or liabilities, those amounts are aliocated on a reasonable basis.

If management uses only one measure of a segment’s surplus or deficit, the segment's assets or the segment's liabilities in
assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources, segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities are
reported in terms of that measure. If management uses more than one measure of a segment's surplus or deficit, the segment’s
assets or the segment’s liabilities, the reported measures are those that management believes are determined in accordance
with the measurement principles most consistent with those used in measuring the corresponding amounts in the entity's
financial statements.

1.36 Heritage assets

Assets are resources controlled by an municipality as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits or service
potential are expected to flow to the municipality.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses.
i

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an municipality's operations that
is shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the annual financial statements.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at the
time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.
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2022 2021

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

Standard/ Interpretation:
. GRAP 25: Employee Benefits
. GRAP 103 on Heritage Assets
. GRAP 104 on Financial Instruments

3. Inventories
Consumable stores

COVID-19 PPE
Medallions - at cost

Inventories (write-downs)

No inventory is held as security by the municipality.

4. Statutory receivables
Traffic fines debtor

Rates from non-exchange transactions
Impairment

Statutory receivables general information

1746 470 1900 805

140 591 245 439
2669 2669
1889730 2148913
(15 235) (11 831)

1874 495 2137 082

5402 158 4013649
126 487 465 103 001 277
(50 602 671) (42 172 961)

81 286 952 64 841 865

The carrying value of Statutory receivables are in line with their fair value, A credit period of 30 days are granted on initial
recognition ofthe receivable, which is considered to be in line with industry norms. Interest is charged at 18% per annum on

overdue accounts.

Rates from non-exchange transactions

These are the receivables as rates that are levied on the properties within the jurisdiction of Matatiele Local Municipality.
The rates that are applicable to a particular property are determined using the valuation roll. Rates are determined in
accordance with the Municipal Property Rates Act No. 6 of 2004 as amended in 2014.

Traffic fines

These are the receivables for the fines in terms of the Road Traffic Regulations and the Municipal Bylaws where applicable.
Fines are determined based on the Road Traffic Management Act.

Statutory receivables impairment

The Allowance for impairment of Statutory receivables has been made for all consumer balances outstanding based on the

payment ratio over 12 months. Based on these payment tren

required in excess of the current allowance.

'AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

30 NOv 2022

further credit provision is

o
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4. Statutory receivables (continued)
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of statutory receivables
Opening balance 42 154 321 37 491 447
Provision for impairment 8 448 350 4 662 874
50 602 671 42 154 321
Rates from non-exchange transactions
Current 1242133 1065 730
31-60 days 1188 412 983 152
61-90 days 1871293 1 585 620
91-120 days 1772719 1 555 846
121-365 days 37 346 963 10 833 643
Over 365 days 83 065 943 86 977 287
Impairment (45905 461) (38571 918)
80 582 002 64 429 360
Traffic Fines from non-exchange transactions
Current 417 300 42 500
31-60 days - 70700
61-90 days 287 650 232 250
91-120 days 636 150 137 900
121-365 days 382150 377 100
Over 365 days 3678910 3153199
Impairment (4697 210) (3601 043)
704 950 412 606
5. Trade receivables from non-exchange transactions
Sundry Debtors 2902 157 3006 166
Impairment on Sundry Debtors (2654 557) (2408 904)
247 600 597 262
No receivables from non-exchange is held as security by the municipality.
Included in Sundry Debtors is medical aid for pensioners and payroll debtors.
The net balance of receivables from non-exchange transactions approximate the fair value of these receivables.
6. VAT receivable
VAT 2761 258 1765934
7. Trade receivables from exchange transactions
Gross balances
Electricity from exchange transactions 19420911 13 647 560
Refuse from exchange transactions 25279619 22 790 062
Principal/Agency sales electricity 17 157 038 16 496 572
Interest accrued from investments 442 642 322 547
62 300 210 53 256 741
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2022 2021
7. Trade receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Less: Allowance for impairment
Electricity from exchange transactions (362 188) (440 582)
Refuse from exchange transactions (22943 867) {20 305 944)
Principal/Agency sales electricity (14 434 753) (8 019 026)
(37 740 808) (28 765 552)
Net balance
Electricity from exchange transactions 19058 723 13 206 978
Refuse from exchange transactions 2335752 2484118
Principal/Agency sales electricity 2722285 8 477 546
Interest accrued from investments 442 642 322 547
24 558 402 24 491 189
Electricity
Current (0 -30 days) 3424 055 4321914
31-60 days 1808 644 1 586 064
61 - 90 days 1495 430 1150 551
91- 120 days 684 968 1437312
121 - 365 days 5025033 4421433
> 365 days 6982 780 730287
19 420 910 13 647 561
Refuse
Current (0 -30 days) 888 913 920 367
31 - 60 days 588 972 623177
61 -90 days 485 147 512 244
91 - 120 days 423237 477 054
121 - 365 days 2939 471 2938 310
> 365 days 19 953 879 17 318 910
25 279619 22 790 062
Principal/Agency sales electricity
Current (0 -30 days}) 2183 606 7 916 462
91 - 120 days - 8580 110
> 365 days 14 973 433 -
17 157 039 16 496 572
Other AUDITOR GENERAL
> 365 days 442 642 322 547

SOUTH AFRICA
30 NOV 2022
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
7. Trade receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 -30 days) 577 667 619 181
31-60days 485 045 530 130
61-90 days 428 572 465 466
91 - 120 days 392210 440 654
121 - 365 days 2763 401 2797 627
> 365 days 19290419 16 886 020
23 937 314 21739078
Less: Allowance for impairment (22 220 580) (19 832 066)
1716734 1907 012
Industrial/ commercial
Current {0 -30 days) 4 666 897 10 571 345
31-60days 756 855 394 580
61 - 90 days 328704 232 087
91 - 120 days 69 917 8725749
121 - 365 days 275436 184 149
> 365 days 156 835 579 727 357
21933388 20 835 267
Less: Allowance for impairment (15520 228) (8 933 486)
6413160 11 901 781
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 1252010 1968 216
31-60 days 1155716 1284 530
61 - 90 days 1223 301 965 242
91 - 120 days 646 078 1328 074
121 - 365 days 4 925 666 4 377 966
> 365 days 6 784 094 435 821
15 986 865 10 359 849
Total
Current (0 -30 days) 6 496 574 13 158 742
31-60days 2397616 2 209 241
61 - 90 days 1980577 1662 795
91 - 120 days 1108 205 10 494 477
121 - 365 days 7 964 503 7 359 742
> 365 days 42 352 735 18 371 745
62 300 210 53 256 742
Less: Allowance for impairment (37 740 808) (28 765 553)
24 559 402 24 491 189
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year (28 765 552) (17 136 002)
Contributions to allowance (8975256) (11629 550)
(37 740 808) (28 765 552)
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2022

2021

7. Trade receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Consumer debtors past due but not impaired

Consumer debtors which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2022, R15 291 180

(2021: R4 622 383) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due 6174 510
2 months past due 1650 156
3 months past due 2037 637

Consumer debtors impaired

As of 30 June 2022, consumer debtors of R70 148 484 (2021: R60 515 029) were impaired and provided for.
The amount of the provision was R37 740 808 as of 30 June 2022 (2021: R28 765 552).

The ageing of these debtors is as follows:

3 to 6 months 448 229
Over 6 months 37244 014

11 857 602
1628 231
1 B80S 357

9 285 164
19 480 389

tn determining the recoverability of a Consumer receivable, the municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the
Consumer receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the management believe that there is no further credit

provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts,

8. Security held in Egskom

Security held in Eskom 4 517 888 4 373 560

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: [l

Cash on hand 1250 1250

Bank balances 8718773 11 294 244

Short-term deposits 228011891 213 126826
236 731 914 224 422 320
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2022

2021

9. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The municipality had the following bank accounts
Account number / description

Nedbank - Current Account (main) - 1011292106
Standard Bank - Current Account - 060435224

First National Bank - Current Account - 52108495187
Standard Bank - 60 Day Notice Account - 68600704/001
Standard Bank - 60 Day Notice Account - 68600704/002
First National Bank - Money Market - 62108486573
NedBank - Call Account - 03/7881006129/000004
NedBank - Call Account - 03/7881120797/000001
NedBank - 32 day Notice - 03/7881006129/0006

First National Bank - Money Market - 62215611121

First National Bank -Money Market - 62286478806
NedBank - Call Account - 03/7881134496/000001
Nedbank - Electrification - 03/7881140356

Standard Bank Call Account - 68600704/002

Nedbank MIG - 03/7881096624/00001

First National Bank - 62175310045

Nedbank - Disaster Relief Fund - 03/7881160276-000001

Nedbank - COVID-19 Solidarity Fund - 03/7881160454-
000001
Nedbank - 03/78811127902

Nedbank - Termination Guarantee - 03/7881169443/000001

Nedbank - Account Guarantee - 03/7881169451/000001
Total

Bank statement balances
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Cash book balances
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

3024 458 10 146 653 2945 059 9778 476
4016 044 285 991 4016 044 285 991
1757 671 1208 559 1757 671 1208 559
95884 582 56 884 582 95 884 582 56 884 582
11461 582 11127 291 11 461 582 11127 291
6 805 396 6 805 396 6 805 396 6 805 396
61864893 79134993 61864 893 79 134 993
10 000 818 332 10 000 818 332

6 646 805 6 384 646 6 646 805 6 384 646
2015578 1970 117 2015578 1970 117
613 365 589 530 613 365 599 530
56 318 54 503 56 318 54 503
281170 272107 281170 272107

- 21294 186 - 21294186
7331852 10 000 7 331852 10 000
197 736 193 696 197 736 193 696
794 466 768 859 794 466 768 859
96 134 92 995 96 134 92 995

27 605 371 26 715 591 27 605 371 26 715 591
144 641 - 144 641 -
6202 000 - 6 202 000 -
236 810062 224 768 027 236 730 663 224 399 850

No investments are held with unregistered banks on behalf of Matatiele Local Municipality.
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Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

10. Investment property (continued)

This was done by an independent and professional valuer with the Registration Number 70006/09, a member of SAIV
(South African Institute of Valuers) by the name of Tshepo Patrick Mokhuwa

Rental revenue 1158 358 1241198
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Matatiele Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Funding of property, plant and equipment acquisitions
Additions to property, plant and equipment was funded from the
following sources:
Infrastructure Assets
Own funds 10 332 637 1832376
Community Assets
Own funds 129 425 579 800
Work in Progress
Municipal infrastructure grant 56 717 802 50 445 688
Integrated national electricification programme 85127 032 28 340 000
Own funds 31301555 58 276 857
Other Assets
Own funds 6 287 827 8 041923
Library grant - 121 470

189 896 278 147 638 114

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection
at the registered office of the municipality.

12. Property, plant and equipment - Capitalised restoration cost

2022 2021
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amortisation Valuation  amortisation
Landfill site 14 640 111 (2 054981) 12585130 14 640 111 (1541 235) 13098876

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - capitalised restoration cost - 2022

Opening Depreciation Total
balance
Landfill site 13 098 876 (513746) 12585130
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Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
12. Property, plant and equipment - Capitalised restoration cost (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - capitalised restoration cost - 20224
Ope ning  Depreciation Total
‘ balaance
Landfill site 1363512622 (513746) 13 098 876

The municipality is required by relevant Environmental Legislation to rehabilitate landfill s ite at the closure date. The
"Capitalised Restoration Cost” asset, which is capitalised in line with the requirements of GRAP 17 and iGRAP 2. relates to
the initial estimate of costs involved to restore landfill site under control of the Matatiele Lagca) Municipality.

Although this item is accounted for under Property, Plant and Equipment Standard (GRA®> 17), the characteristics and
nature of this item does not resemble that of normal PPE (such as the tangible nature of mgsets normally associated with
PPE). Based on the aforementioned and in line with the requirements of GRAP 1, CapitalNised Restoration Cost is disclosed
as a separate item on the face of the Statement of Financial Position.

Refer to note 19 for more detail relating to this asset financed by way of a provision.

[ AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

30 NOV 2022

R —id
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Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
15. Payables from exchange transactions (continued)
Bonus accrual is calculated on a 13th cheque attributable to all staff.
Payable water services relates to money collected on behalf of Alfred Nzo District Municipality.
16. Consumer deposits
Electricity 390 324 369 024

Consumers on application for electricity connections pay consumer deposits. The deposit is repaid when the connection is
terminated. Consumer deposits are refunded when a property changed ownership in the form of rental or permanent
transfer(sold).

In cases when consumers default on their accounts, council can utilise the deposit as payment against the outstanding amount.
Consumer deposits approximate their fair value.

17. Employee benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded {17 562 003) (16 497 003)
Non-ctirrent liabilities (16 388 003) (15 249 003)
Current liabilities (1174 000) (1248 000)

(17 562 003) (16 497 003)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 13 212 361 11 331 361
Contributions by plan participants (1248 000Q) (966 813)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 2 313 000 2 847 813

14 277 361 13 212 361

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current service cost 1 408 000 1262 000
Interest cost 1536 000 1329 000
Actuarial (gains) losses (631 000) 256 813

2 313 000 2 847 813

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Actual return on plan assets 62 62
Discount rates used 11,85 % 10,06 %
Expected rate of return on assets 7,98 % 7,98 %
Expected rate of return on reimbursement rights 1,60 % 1,60 %
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Matatiele Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

17. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Other assumptions

Assumed healthcare cost trends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surplus or deficit. A one
percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trends rates would have the following effects:

One One
percentage percentage
point increase point

decrease
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost 3419000 2 570000
Effect on defined benefit obligation 14 011 000 10 065 000
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Defined benefit obligation 17 562 003 16 497 003 14 616 000 15 215 831 15 269 222
Surplus (deficit) (17 662 003) (16497 003) (14616000) (15215831) (15269 222)

Defined contribution plan

It is the policy of the municipality to provide retirement benefits to all its employees [or specify number of employees covered]. A
number of defined contribution prov‘demiunasfﬂoiwmmare_subjemro the Pensions Fund Act exist for this purpose.
. cipality fs und bt AUDITOR (;_‘;Ede~R,a_

e municipality is under no obligatjon ver any unfunded benefils.

SOOI REEICE

Included in defined contribution plar} information above, is the following iplan(s) which is (are) a Multi-Employer Funds and is
(are) a Defined Benefit Plans, but dle to the Isiﬂr:m M informafion is not available to enable the municipality to account
for the plan(s) as a defined benefit plan(s). THe % i counted for this (these) plan{s) as a defined contribution plan(s).

18. Unspent conditional grants End receipts

Unspent conditional grants and feceipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Alien plant eradication grant 465 060 2223711
Library upgrade 1 808 337 1512 417
Local economic development projects 506 537 506 537
Municipal infrastructure grant 9 341672 -
Other grants 218 252 218 253

12 339 858 4 460 918

Movement during the period

Balance at the beginning of the period 4 460918 1752893
Additions during the period 181936 000 102 565 500
Income recognition during the period (174 057 060) (99 857 475)

12 339 858 4 460 918

See note 28 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government,

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised.
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19. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2022
Opening Additions Utilised Total
Balance during the
year
Environmental rehabilitation 17 971 648 4 467 526 - 22 439 174
Performance bonus 2 399 197 168 759 - 2 567 956
Leave 13 790 385 - {1196 184) 12594 211

34 161 240 4 636 285 (1196184) 37 601 341

Reconciliation of provisions - 2021

Opening Additions Utilised Total
Balance during the
year

Environmental rehabilitation 14 591 764 3379884 .- 17 971 648
Performance bonus 6562 225 1958 413 {211 441) 2 399 197
Leave 11 346 199 2 444 196 - 13 790 395

26 590 188 7 782 493 (211 441) 34161 240
Non-current liabilities 22439174 17 971 648
Current liabilities 15162 167 16 189 592

37 601 341 34 161 240

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The minimum requirements for waste disposal by landfill as stated by the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry, " All land
fills, except those closed prior to August 1990 when the permitting system came into effect, must be permitted before they can
be legally closed. Closure will involve, inter alia, the application of final cover, top sciling, vegetating, drainage maintenance and
leachate management.”

The financial implications for the rehabilitation of the landfill site were performed by Hendrik Adriaan Roets, who is registered
with the South African Institution of Civil Engineering. This was carried out on the 18 July 2022 for the effective date, 30 June
2022, Currently no appointment for the closure has been made, and therefore estimates have been compiled. The provision is
based on a 15 year estimation.

Landfill sites generally fall into 3 categories, which are separated by the size of the landfill, the type of waste and the amount of
leachate produced. The land fill site closure design is based on it falling in the G:S:B+ formation which has the following capping
layers:

- 200mm Topsoil
- 300mm Compacted clay

In calculating the provision for rehabilitation, the following four items have been included:

Direct contract costs - this equates to a unit cost of 90 Rand per square meter based on previous closure of the Ducats landfill
Unit costs are used to estimate rehabilitation costs until a service provider is appointed to perform an investigation and design.

Indirect professional fees - these fees are fixed and are based on a percentage of the contract.
Indirect disbursements - These are estimated by obtaining quotations from third party service providers for similar works.
Escalation has also been considered and included in the costs.

The monetary value for the provision for the landfili site at 30 June 2022 is R16 050 717 (2021: R14 374 066).
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19. Provisions (continued)
Environmental rehabiiitation provision
Rehabilitation provision - Landfill site 16 050 717 14 374 066
The movement in Rehabilitation Provision - Landfill Site are reconciled as follows:
Opening balance 14 374 066 14 591 765
Contribution/(reduction) during the year 1676 651 (217 699)

16 050 717 14 374 066

It is estimated that the site will not be rehabilitated within 1 year from the reporting date and thus there is no short term portion
associated with this provision. The timing of the outflow of resources relating to this provision is uncertain, but management
expects the timing to be in line with the legal requirement subsequent to the expected closure date of the site as indicated
below.

The total obligation at year end is attributed to the following site:

Site Expected
Closure Date
Matatiele Landfill Site 2029 16 050 717 14 374 066

The Environmental Specialists were utilised to determine the cost of rehabilitation of landfill site as well to assist the municipality
in identifying any changes (if any) to estimated closure dates previously reported on in former entities.

The estimated area per site to be rehabilitated at year end were as follow (Rehabilitation area - per metre squared).

Matatiele Landfill Site 150 000 150 000

AUDITOR G
The cost of rehabilitaion per squarelmeSec’i fjsﬁ‘-fn thgrc\:!ﬁeﬁﬂ!m f construction at each reporting period. The cost per

square metre were estimated as follow AFRICA

30 Nov 2022
|

Employee benefit cost provision!

L

Leave ——

Matatiele Landfill Site 88 38

Staff leave accrue to the staff of the municipality on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The accrual is an estimate of
the amount due at the reporting date.

Performance Bonus

Performance bonuses accrue to senior managers on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The provision is an estimate
of the amount due at the reporting date.

20. Revaluation reserve

Opening balance 230445832 230445832
Impairment losses on revalued capital assets (45 476 217) -
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve to Accumulated Surplus (11 600 044) -

173 369671 230 445832
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20. Revaluation reserve (continued)

The revaluation reserve arose on the revaluation of land and buildings and infrastructure asset in prior periods. Where revalued
land and buildings and infrastructure assets are sold, the portion of the revaluation reserve that relates to that asset, and is
effectively realised, is transferred directly to accumulated surplus. The revaluation reserve is also realised through the transfer
of depreciation on revalued assets to accumulated surplus. Distribution from the revaluation reserve can be made where they
are in accordance with the requirements of the municipality's accounting policy and relevant case law. The payment of cash
distribution out of the reserve is restricted by the terms of the municipality's accounting policy. These restrictions do not apply to
any amounts transferred to accumulated surplus. The council does not currently intend to make any distributions from the
revaluation reserve.

21. Service charges

Sale of electricity 56 530475 57 058 073
Refuse removal 11615 143 11 630 584

68 145618 68 538 657

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from service charges are in respect of services rendered which are billed to the
consumers on a monthly basis according to approved tariffs.

22. Rental of facilities and equipment

Hall hire 225582 100 445
Site rental 904 405 1129 945
Stadium hire 28 371 10 808

1158 358 1241198

23. Agency services

Motor vehicle licenses 1649 721 1769 769

24. Licences and permits (exchange)

Drivers and motor vehicle licenses 1 698 908 1984 846
Business licenses 48 156 16 528
Hoarding permits 1432 632
Fishing licenses 8383 14789

1756879 2016 785
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25, Other income
Sundry services 102 084 156 668
Rezoning certificates 55 841 50 222
Pool fees 39448 37275
Rates certificates 23378 22 611
Building plans 135 851 182 083
Camping fees 122 584
Cemetery fees 113 308 158 973
Tender documents 516 570 271004
Demolition fees 11729 12707
Sub-division planning - 5684
SETA refund 279245 109 570
Special consent 15583 14 093
Temporary structure planning 14 766 8 649

1307 925 1030123

The amounts disclosed above for other income are in respect of services rendered which are billed to or paid for by the users

as the services are required according to approved tariffs,

26. Interest revenue

Interest on short term deposits 9 598 956 8 835230
Interest on electricity and rates 16 187 979 13 357 256
Interest on Eskom deposit 144 328 172 254

259312623 22 364 740
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27. Property rates
Rates received
Commercial 7 008 537 6 094 052
Communal land 1510 367 1529116
Municipal 32230529 31293 327
Residential 7 149 448 6 991 964
Vacant land 826 907 667 032

48 725 788 46 575 491

Supplementary assessment rates are levied on the value of land and improvements, for which a valuation is performed every
five years. Valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to

alterations and subdivisions.
A new valuation roll has been implemented from 1 July 2018.

The council approved randage for this financial year are,

Government R0,02176, Municipality R0,013054, Vacant Land R0,02176, Residential R0,010878, Business R0,013054 and

Agricuitural R0,0026403.

Rebates are as follows:

Public Benefit Organisation 100%, Municipal Rebate 100%, Agriculture 70%, Residential Rebate 40% and Business 15%.

Residential properties receives R65 000 exemption.
Valuations

Residential

Commercial

State

Vacant land

Municipal and local government (rural)
Exempted properties

1 395 348 039
828 658 720
1247 677 441
38 565 725
1481572 385
366 601 970

1363 021 289
888 853 363
1243 228 411
36 630 810
1483 552 385
391 482 480

5 358 425 280

5406 768 738
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28. Government grants and subsidies
Operating grants
Equitable share 258 826 000  29¢ 604 000
Local government financial management grant 1 650 000 1 700 000
Expanded public works programme integrated 4 887 000 3499 000
Nature reserve alien cleaning 1758 651 1 566 789
267 121651 306 369 789
Capital grants
Municipal infrastructure grant 67 754 304 60 335000
Integrated national electricification programme 97 778 000 32 591 000
Library upgrade 229104 165 686
165761408 93 091686
432883059 399 461 475
Local government financial management grant
Current-year receipts 1 650 000 1 700 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1650 000) (1700 000)
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18),
Integrated national electrification programme grant
Cufient et FeabtE AUDITOR GENERAL 97 778000 32 591000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue SOUTH AFRICA (97 778.000) (32 591 000)
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see nafe 18).
Expanded public works programme integrated grant
Current-year receipts 4 387 000 3 499 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4 887 000) (3499 000)
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).
Alien Plant Eradication Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year 2223711 3 790 500
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1758651) (1566 789)
465 060 2223711
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).
Library upgrade
Balance unspent at the beginning of the period 1512 417 1028 103
Current-year receipts 650 000 650 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (354 080) (165 686)
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28. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
1808 337 1512417

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).
Local economic development projects

Balance unspent at the beginning of the period 506 537 506 537

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).

Municipal infrastructure grant

Current-year receipts 76 971 000 58 255 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (67 629 328) (68 255 000)
9 341 672 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).
Other grants

Balance unspent at the beginning of the period 218 253 218 253

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 18).

29. Fine receipts

Fines:Pound Fees 284 536 219776
Traffic:Municipal 1773903 542 627
2 058 439 762 403
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30. Employee related costs
Basic 87 414 090 76 990 871
Bonus 6 209 360 7 449 885
Medical aid - company contributions 5781502 5 568 691
UIF 683 023 537 377
WCA 1854 299 1562 016
SDL 1275868 998 069
Leave pay provision charge 1642 551 3 820 941
Pension fund contributions 12 508 935 12 148 393
Overtime payments 1789 968 2 166 597
Long-service awards 523 482 289703
Car allowance 5876 930 5573 186
Housing benefits and allowances 5823629 4 861 336
Cellular and telephone allowances 6 000 6 000
131389637 121973165
Remuneration of Municipal Manager
Annual Remuneration 827 579 675987
Back pay - 26 588
Bonus 139 315 112107
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 74 897 60 100
Remote allowance 97 065 80 887
Car Allowance 346 659 282 236
1485 515 1 237 905
Mr. L. Matiwane served as Municipal Manager for the entire period.
Mr. L. Matiwane's contract nm!gwm
Remuneration of Chief F|nalS CPEcEE- LFRICA
Annual remuneration 620078 584 225
Car Allowance 30 NOV 2022 226 693 214 742
Performance bonuses - 166 283
Bonus 60 000 60 000
Housing allowance 226 693 214 742
Remote allowance J 79 342 90 497
Back pay _— - 219 098
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1813 1785
1214619 1551 372
Mr. K. Mehlomakulu served as Chief Financial Officer for the entire period.
Remuneration of Corporate Services General Manager
Annual remuneration 384 867 597 663
Car Allowance 203 563 195 851
Performance Bonuses - 290 321
Acting allowance 11173 14 428
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1218 40 637
Back pay 119 508 537 786
Housing allowance - 146 888
Remote allowance 52 895 106 193
Bonus 47 704 -
820 928 1929767
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30. Employee related costs (continued)

Mr. C.K Magadla was acting in this position from the 1st of July to the 30th of October 2021 and he was appointed from the 1st
of November 2021.

Remuneration of Community Services General Manager

Annual remuneration 142 276 341 462
Car allowance 151128 362 708
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 28 636 68 370
Housing allowance 151 128 362 708
Remote allowance 42 442 79 342

515 610 1214 580

Mr., S.M. Mbedla's contract ended in November 2021. Miss T. Ntsalla was acting in this position from December 2021 - March
2022.

Remuneration of Community Services General Manager
Acting allowance 3855 -

Ms. A. Ganya was appointed as Acting Community Services General Manager from April 2022 to June 2022.

Remuneration of the Economic Development Planning General Manager

Annual remuneration 348 000 348 000
Car allowance 392732 392732
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1813 1785
Housing allowance 392732 392732
Remote allowance 79342 79 342

1214 619 1214 591

Ms. T.S. Ntsalla served as Economic Development Planning General Manager for the entire period.
On the 1st of August 2022 Ms. T.S. Ntsalla was appointed as the Acting Municipal Manager for a period of 3 months.

Remuneration of the Infrastructure General Manager

Annual remuneration 680 078 644 225
Car allowance 283 366 257 247
Performance Bonuses - 52 895
Bonus 113 346 85010
Other - 1785
Housing allowance 56 673 87 227
Back pay - 219098
Remote allowance 79 342 90 496
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1813 -

1214618 1437983

Mr. M. Lehlehla served as General Manager: Infrastructure Services for the entire period.
Mr. M. Lehlehla has since resigned and his last day is on the 31st of August 2022.

Staff leave benefits

Municipal Manager 209 756 114 113
Chief Financial Officer 223 868 172 565
Community Services 185 785 171 399
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30. Employee related costs (continued)
EDP Manager 205212 186 557
Corporate Services Manager 74623 122 214
Infrastructure Manager 223 868 130 590
1123112 897 438
31. Remuneration of councillors
Executive Mayor 935 396 905 259
Speaker 763 742 733088
Chief Whip 709 415 690 046
MPAC Chair 696 581 635 698
Executive committee 4905615 4 608 398
Councillors 13 442 826 12 406 568
21 443 575 19 979 057

In-kind benefits

The Mayor and the Speaker are full-time Councillors each have the use of separate Council owned vehicles for official duties.

The Mayor has one driver and one mayoral aid. The Speaker has one driver and one speaker’s aid.

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRicA

30 Nov 2022
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31. Remuneration of councillors (continued)

Additional information

The salaries, allowance and benefits of councillors are within the upper limits of the framewaork envisaged in section 219 of the

Constitution of Seuth Africa.

Mayor (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

Mayor (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

Speaker (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

Speaker (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

Chief Whip (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

Chief Whip (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

EXCO (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

EXCO (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

MPAC (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)
Annual Remuneration
Telephone allowances

306 131 860 859
15293 44 400
321424 305 259
584 856 860 859
29107 44 400
613 963 905 259
240737 688 688
15293 44400
256 030 733 088
468 612 688 688
29 107 44 400
497 719 733 088
225464 645 646
15 293 44 400
240 757 690 046
439 551 645 646
29107 44 400
468 658 690 046
1542551 4423549
137 640 359 600
1660191 4783149
2963463 4219492
26 960 388 906
2990423 4608 398
224 986 632 674
15293 44 400
240 279 677 074
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31. Remuneration of councillors {continued)

MPAC (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)

Annual Remuneration 427 195 591 298

Telephone allowances 29107 44 400
456 302 635 698

Councillors (Ordinary) (1 July 2021 to 4 November 2021)

Annual Remuneration 2808712 10337 373

Telephone allowances 581 147 1533 187

3 389 859 11 870 560

Councillors (Ordinary)} (4 November 2021 to 30 June 2022)

Annual Remuneration 8426135 10 291 277
Telephone allowances 1194 117 1712 552
Pensioners Med Aid 432713 402 739

10 052 965 12 406 568

32. Remuneration of traditional leaders

Remuneration of traditional leaders 128728 329 090

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA |

L
|

33. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

52438864 42 555 146

3 U NOV 2022 | 359422 288 199

52 798 286 42 843 345

34. Finance costs

Interest on late payments - 34 877 14 262

35. Material and stores

Material and stores (6 075 204) (5 757 481)

36. Bulk purchases

Electricity 58 160 536 48 196 231

Bulk purchases are the cost of commodities not generated by the municipality, which the municipality distributes in the
municipal area for resale to consumers. Electricity is purchased from Eskom. The municipality incurred electricity line losses of
R1 622 338 at a percentage of 5.02% (2021; R1 515 136 at a percentage of 5.67%) in the current year.

Water is supplied directly to residents and businesses by the district municipality
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37. Contracted services
Outsourced Services
Business and Advisory 36423396 29328495
Catering Services 1708 655 981 616
Cleaning Services 4793177 3123604
Connection / Dis-connection 111 526 86 300
Refuse Removal 5682 078 3987 329
Sewerage Services - 1 800
Electrical 721880 718 000
Consultants and Professional Services
Business and Advisory 24 227 582 28 746 576
Legal Cost 3376 829 2 696 326
Contractors
Employee Wellness 368 891 248 755
Event Promoters 237 129 19 000
Maintenance of Unspecified Assets 11 815 850 14 725 452
Preservation/Restoration/Dismantling/Cleaning Service 1067 835 1541 324
Tracing Agents and Debt Collectors 633339 72033
Safeguard and Security 10 694 700 7712052

101 862867 93 988 662

38. General expenses

Achievement and awards 592 493 461 226
Advertising 2 486 649 1513605
Audit fees 4521174 3035080
Printing and stationery 159 334 194 661
Bank charges 216 347 270825
Bursaries and learnerships 2817 700 2943 509
Communication 389832 437 500
Conferences and seminars 136 162 76 957
Connection fees - 386 738
Postage and courier 202018 207 871
Delegate expenses 5035 903 2300249
Electricity 416 872 624 356
External computer services 3050 131 2426772
Hire charges 1738948 1018 108
Insurance 3032604 2539 885
Motor vehicle expenses 185 226 207 368
Obsolete stock written off 15235 11 831
Other expenses 3127 372 1921 506
Remuneration to ward committees 2226 000 3087 000
Resettlement cost - 25 000
Subscriptions and membership fees 1524 069 1684 497
Telephone and fax 2 845 565 2230136
Transport provided as part of departmental activities 833 282 284 450
Uniforms and protective clothing 1979977 2 307 201
Wet fuel and oil 2 389 695 1720170

40022588 31976 501

39. Debt impairment

Debt impairment 17 650 618 18 719 969
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40. Fair value adjustments
Investment property (Fair value model) - 1262 067
41. Bad debts written off
Bad debts written off - 8 617 754

42, Operating lease
The Municipality had the following operating leases in the current year:

Nedbank - for a period of 5 years. At the reporting date the entity has outstanding commitments under operating leases
which fall due as follows:

Nedbank - Cashvault

Up to 1 year 84 008 -
2-5 years 252 025 -
336 033 -
Telkom Internet - The lease is for a period o !.S_y.um\‘
Up to 1 year - 326 417
2.5 years AUDITOR GENERAL . 652 834
SOUT:{ AFRICA . 979 251
Telkom VPN - The lease is for a period of 5 ears. 3 0 NOV 2022
Up to 1 year X 450 225 382 017
2-5 years i 525 262 827703
} : 975 487 1209720
—_—
Telkom - The lease is for a period of 5 years.
Up to 1 year 480 426 480 427
2-5 years 640 568 1120 995
1120 994 1601 422
Itec - The lease is for a period of 3 years.
Up o 1 year 800 667 -
2-5 years 867 389 -

1 668 056 -
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43, Cash generated from operations
Surplus 70205582 108 673 765
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 52 798 286 42 843 345
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities 78262784 40623 548
Debt impairment 17 650618 18 719 969
Fair value adjustments - {1262 067)
Impaiment loss 1113 241 -
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 1 065 000 1881000
Movements in provisions 3440101 7 571 051
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 262 587 (434 488)
Trade receivables from exchange transactions (9 043 464) (17 044 382)
Statutory receivables (24 874 699) (515 720)
Trade receivables from non-exchange transactions 104 008 (3 005 441)
Payables from exchange transactions 4 461 236 9 017 097
VAT (995 320) 8 654 196
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 7 878 940 2708 025
Consumer deposits 21 300 23527

202 350 200 218 453 425
44, Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
. Property, plant and equipment 26 463 096 32710186
Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 26 463 096 32710186

Authorised operational expenditure

The committed expenditure relates to property, plant and equipment contracts that will be finished in the coming years. The

commitments will be financed by grants as well as own revenue.

The commitment amounts are exclusive of VAT.

The commitments for the current year will be funded as follows, Integrated National Electrification Programme R1 117 758,

Municipal Infrastructure Grant R13 608 889 and from Own Operational Revenue R11 736 449.
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45. Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities

DCT Nakin vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued for damages of R2 086 357, and the case is still pending.
Two Sisters vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued for non-payment of services rendered.

Just Vision Events (Pty) Ltd vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The company ledged an application which was opposed by the municipality, the applicant
never set the matter down nor file replying affidavits.

Golng Places Construction and Projects vs Matatiele Local Municipality

This is an application to interdict the municipality.

Joubert Darren vs Matatiele Local Municipality

Summons claiming R18 000.00 were received and MLM defended the claim. MLM
requested further particulars from the claimant which have not been provided, MLM has not
pleaded.

Lateral Unison Insurance Brokers vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The applicant is seeking to review and set aside the Municipality’s decision to award a
tender for insurance services to another company. The estimated cost of the suit is R80
000.

MP Vutela vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The employee has referred an unfair labour practice dispute to the bargaining council.
Rechal Bloem vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The Municipality is being sued for R10 000 000 due to a minor child being electrocuted by
Municipal electricity.

Begin Africa vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued for non payment of services rendered.

Bono / Mbadu vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued and the nature of case cannot be clarified at this stage. The
estimated cost of the suit is R70000.

PC Matholoana vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued and the nature of case cannot be clarified at this stage. The
estimated cost of the suit cannot be determined.

Station Commander Matatiele Police Station & Others vs Matatiele Local Municipality
An application has been made to restere possession to the municipality.

Mazasa Management Consuitants vs Matatiele Local Municipality

An application has been launched Mazasa to be declared a lawful service provider. The
application was dismissed with costs,

The municipality has now received a Notice of Appeal. The estimated cost is R150 000.
Thabang Manele vs Matatiele Local Municipality

Urgent application launched to interdict and restrain the first respondent and further
unlawful invaders from occupying or

attempting to invade the Property.

Mohato Moshoeshoe vs Matatiele Local Municipality

Urgent application launched to interdict and restrain the first respondent and further
unlawful invaders from occupying or

attempting to invade the Property.

Ayanda Harold Shibani vs Matatiele Local Municipality

The municipality is being sued for damages of R349 998. The estimated cost of the suit is
R25 000.

Excellent Security Services vs Matatiele Local Municipality

This is an application to interdict the municipality from awarding of a security tender to Ubilo
Security Services. The application was struck of the roll with costs.

Liana Consulting vs Matatiele Local Municipality

Liana Consulting Non-monetary claim where the applicant is seeking to interdict the
appointment of a service provider pending the hearing of a review application.

2 086 357

300000

95 000

50 000

80 000

275000

250 000

250 000

2 086 357

400 000

70 000

75 000

150 000

65 000

130 000

25000

10 000

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTIH AFRICA
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45. Contingencies (continued)

Contingent Assets

Matatiele Municipality vs Lubbe Construction

The municipality lodged a claim against the contractor for construction of the Council 22173329 22173 329
chambers which was not carried out

with due skill, diligence and regularity.

Matatiele Municipality vs Branded Soul

Attorneys are in the process of recovering the legal cost as there is a possibility that the 15 000 15000
case will not be continued.

Matatiele Local Municipality vs Soul Goods

The Municipality is in a process of recovering up to an amount of R65 108 from Soul 13000 13 000
Goods, the case is at advanced stages.

Matatiele Local Municipality vs Alfred Nzo District Municipality and Harry Gwala

District Municipality

The Municipality is in the process of recovering R5 676 505 from Alfred Nzo District - -
Municipality and R2 941 249 from Sisonke District Municipality for services carried out on

behalf of the respective districts, however, the outcome of the recovery is currently

uncertain.

Matatiele Local Municipality vs Various

The Municipality is claiming pound and storage fees for vehicles which have been 70 000 -
impounded.

22271329 22201329

46. Risk management
Financial risk management

The municpality's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk; fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The municipality's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the municipality’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a budget and treasury
department (municipal treasury) under policies approved by the accounting officer. Municipality treasury identifies, evaluates and
financial risks in close co-operation with the municipality’s operating units. The accounting officer provide written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas.

The amount of interest that has been charged on outstanding debtors for the current year is R16 187 979 (2021: R13 357 256).
Liquidity risk

The municipality's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the municipality’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Liquidity risk is mainly concentrated on the trade and other payables balances. The municipality does not have any collateral
and / or credit enhancements that aid in the mitigation of the liquidity risk.
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48. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial assets 2022 2021

Trade receivables 106 093 954 89 930 416
Nedbank 2945 059 9 778 476
Standard bank 4016 044 285 991
First National bank 1757 671 1208 559
Short Term Investments 228011891 213 126 826
Security held in Eskom 4 517 888 4 373 560

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 55641925 51 180689

47. Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 69 601 085 38 546 463
Opening balance as restated 69 601 085 38 546 463
Add: Expenditure identified - current 93 380 933 69 601 085
Less: Approved/condoned/authorised by council (69 601 085) (38 546 463)
Closing balance 93 380 933 69 601 085

After investigation by the MPAC, on the 28th of July 2022 as per Council Resolution CR 205/28/07/2022 it was resolved that an
amount of R69 601 085 will be written off.

The unauthorised expenditure is as a result of transfer of assets from the municipal work in progress to Eskom as a result of
rural electrification that is done by the municipality. The municipality receives a grant from INEP to construct these projects.
These projects, once completed, are transferred to Eskom. The municipality must put these projects as part of assets or on the
assets register as they cannot be left unaccounted for until Eskom receives them on their register.

Analysed as follows: non-cash

Debt impairment AUDITOR GENERAL 10650622 20503607
Depreciation and impairment - 8 473 205
Provision of landfill site contribution expense SOUTH AFRICA 4 467 527 ;i
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 78 262 784 40623 548

30 NOv 2022 93380933 69 600 360

Analysed as follows: cash

Finances charges 34 877 725
34 877 725
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4B. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 913692 55226
Opening balance as restated 913 692 55 226
Add: Expenditure identified - current 34 877 915 168
Less: Amounts recovered - current - (1 476)
Less: Amount written off - current - (55 226)
Closing balance 948 569 913 692

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R913 692 is as a result of standing time that was charged by the contractor
that was constructing the Matatiele Sports Center in 2017, This was as a result of a change of scope of work. This was
investigated in the 2021/22 financial year and sent Council with the ones relating to Unauthorised and lrregular. The fruitiess
amount was not included on the report of the investigators and therefore could not be proven that it was investigated.

48, lIrregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 16 700 806 9412 749
Opening balance as restated 16 700 806 9412749
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current 8 705 462 8 810 717
Less: Amount written off - current (15127 717) (1522 660)
Closing balance 10 278 551 16 700 806

Amounts written-off

After investigation by the MPAC on the 28th of July 2022 as per Council Resolution CR 205/28/07/2022 it was resolved that an
amount R15 127 717 will be written off.

The irregular expenditure were as a results of the following: R176 200 for Equipment for Environmental Waste Unit Wattle
Clearing Programme in ward 17. R200 000 Grass Cutting, drain cleaning and tree pruning in Harry Gwala and Mountain View.
For these projects upon appointment, the service providers were not tax compliant.

R5 167 230 for Annual Financial Statements and Assets Register for both Protea Consulting and Sondlo Chartered
Accountants. The appointment of these service providers were identified in the previous year as irreguiar and these are the
transactions that occurred in the current year.

R1 566 362 for the appointment of three service providers for Matatiele Local Municipality Livestock Improvement Programme,
dosing and vaccination of 400 sheep and 400 cattle per ward in 26 wards. This was due to the manager from the Budget and
Treasury Office having sat in the evaluation committee for a particular project and later on being appointed as an acting Supply
Chain Manager. Due to that manager being appoeinted as an acting Supply Chain Manager he had to sit on the Bid Adjudication
commiteee as an supply chain management practioner as per the regulations. This was after the Supply Chain Manager had
resigned.

R1 585 669 for the construction of Magema-Kutwana access road. The contractor was appeinted with an expired tax clearance
certificate.

R50 429 paid to former Councillor S. Baba who was paid after being sentenced in the 2020/2021 financial year. This was raised
as a debtor in the same year and is to be recovered from his pension,

R578 858 for Annual Financial Statements and Assets Register for both Protea Consulting and Sondle Chartered Accountants
for payments made that were not identified as irregular in the 2020/2021 financial year.

R943 801 for the appointment of this service provider was identified in the previous year as irregular and these transactions
ocurred in the previous year.
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50. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Contributions to organised local government
Current year subscription / fee 1516 111 1462 410
Amount paid - current year (1516 111) (1462 410)
Audit fees
Current year subscription / fee 4521174 3035080
Amount paid - current year (4 521 174) (3 035 080)

AUDITOR GENERAL | - i
PAYE and UIF SOUTH AFRICA |
Current year subscription / fee ; 21975 209 21 764 669
Amount paid - current year 3 ﬂ NOV 2022 (21975209) (21 764 669)
Pension and Medical Aid Deductions
Current year subscription / fee 18 454 178 17 123 958
Amount paid - current year (18 454 178) (17 123 958)

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts

The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2022:

30 June 2022 Qutstanding Outstanding Total
less than 90 more than 90
days days
WC Mdolomba - 8 106 8 106
30 June 2021 Outstanding Outstanding Total
less than 80 more than 80
days days
MN Mshugwana 160 - 160
JG van Whye 1049 325 1374
T Dyantyi 160 - 160
WC Mdoclomba 8 106 - 8106
SM Mzozoyana 1029 3690 4719
10 504 4015 14 519

69



Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

50. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)
Supply chain management regulations
In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain

Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and noted by Council. The expenses incurred as
listed hereunder have been condoned.

Incident

Emergency 80 000 142 882
Sole supplier - 875622
Impractical Impossible - 470 405
Special works of art 1773910 -

1853910 1488 909
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Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
52. Principal-agent arrangements
52.1 Municipality acting as the principal
Parallax Management Consulting 6 034 893 5014 972

The municipality has directed Parallax Management Consutting through a binding arrangement to undertake transactions with
third parties on Matatiele Local Municipality for it municipality's own benefit, which is sale of municipal electricity. There have
been no changes in the contracts from the prior period. These are specialists which are used due to capacitation of the
municipality and is more cost effective which provide customers easy access to prepaid electricity.

The municipality compensates Parallax Management Consulting for the services rendered in accordance with the contractuatl
agreement which are detailed in the contract.

The following charges are levied for services undertaken by Parallax in fulfilling this

agreement
Cloud-services AIM Solutions 4 500 meters at R154 each per month 693 000 693 000
Municipal prepaid electricity vending fixed per month 25000 25000

718 000 718 000

Parallax is also entitled to claim 3% of Direct Vending, Third Party Vending, Online and Mobile Vending, 5% Primary Vending
and 4.25% of Bank vending.

Reconciliation of carrying amount of receivables - Municipality as the principal

Receivables - 2022 Opening Revenue Less: Closing
balance principal is  settlements balance
entitled to
Parallax Management Consulting 23 754 860 1593620 (343 168) 25005 312
Receivables - 2021 Opening Revenue Less: Closing
balance principalis  settlements balance
entitled to
Parallax Management Consulting 18 076 755 7 916 462 (2238 357) 23754860

52.2 Municipality acting as an agent
Department of transport 1649721 1769 769

The municipality collects vehicle registration fees an behalf of the Department of Transport for registration of vehicles done
within the municipality's jurisdiction. There have been no changes in the agreement or contracts from the prior period. The
municipality is entitled to 19% of the fees collected as per the agreement as compensation for the transactions carried out.
There are no liabilities or expenses that have been incurred on behalf of the Department of Transport relating to the above
arrangement. No assets held by the municipality on behalf of the Department of Transport.

53. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty and Judgements

The following areas involve a significant degree of estimation uncertainty:

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, and equipment '
Recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment AUDITOR GENERAL
Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites (discount rate used, number of years |a tfﬂmﬁﬂ oy
Present value of defined benefit obligation n'sﬁ Fe ‘ﬁﬁ: h!CA
Fair value of plan assets

Provision for doubtful debts 3 [] NUV ZDZZ
Impairment of assets

Provision for long-term service award
Contingencies
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Matatiele Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

53. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty and Judgements (continued)

The following areas involved judgments, apart from those involving estimations disclosed above, that management has
made in the process of applying the entity's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets
Provisions

54, Prior period errors

The prior year figures were restated due to entries not captured in the correct period resulting in the following adjustments for
2020-2021.

Payables decreased by R5 553 387,

Workmens compensation not accrued for during the year, orders that were cancelled, over payment of retention, under payment of emplo
debtor account and raising of retention on property,plant and equipment.

Receivables from exchange transactions decreased by R474 646

Due to reducing of debtor against the commission payable and reversal of debt impairment raised.
Provisions - Non Current Liabilities increased by R3 597 582

Due to recalculation of en\(ironmental rehabilition provision.

Debt impairment decreased by R6 783 642

Reversal debt impairment raised on debtor.

Landfill site contribution increased by R3 5§97 582

Due to recalculation of environmental rehabilition provision.

VAT increased by R12 844.

Due to orders that were cancelled as they incorrectly accrued for during the year. over payment of retention and raising of retention on pr
Finance Cost increased by R13 537.

Due io interest charged on outstanding workmens compensation account.

Workmens Compensation increase by 1 562 016

Workmens compensation not accounted for during the year.

Stores and material decreased by R5 783.

Due to orders that were cancelled as they were incorrectly recorded during the year.

Contracted services - catering decreased by R2 665.

Due to orders that were cancefled as they were incorrectly recorded during the year.

Contracted services - accounting and audit decreased by R28 500.

Due to orders that were cancelled as they were incorrectly recorded during the year.

Contracted services - maintenance of equipment decreased by R29 335,

78



64

$Z0 9SP £ Aq posealosp ssaubosd ul YO - uawdinb3 pue jueyd ‘Apadoid

‘§]@SSYy 18Y3( J8pun papnjoul Usag aAey PInoys jey) ssaibold Ul YHOAA SE pasoosip AjSnolaald ai1am jey) Sjosse Jo uonesyisse|dal e o) ang
‘€26 £25 £ Aq paseaiaul sjassy Jay30 - Juswdinbg pue Juejd ‘Auadoid

-pasiubosal Buiaq A|snoinaid Jou LWOYST Ul play Nsodap Ajnogs uo paules sasiul 0} anQ

'$GZ ZL1Y Aq pasealdu) paaladel }salau|

‘pasiubooal Buiaq Alsnoirald Jou wioys3 ul pjay jisodap Ajunoas uo paules isalajul o} ang

"pSZ TLLY Aq paseaisu) woys3 ul pay isodap fundag

‘aafojdws 0} snuoaq jo JuswAed sopun pue pasies Buiaq siabeuew a|ppiul Joj sesnuoq saduewopsd o) 8nQg

*ZvZ 68 LY Aq pesealaul snuog - s1502 aakojdwg
"1eaA 2y} Buunp papiooal A0anooul aem ABY) SE PaJ|SDUED BI9M JeY) SIapJo 0) eng

‘000 6Y Aq paseasdsp suuosun

AFRICA

12k a2y} Buunp paplooal Ajjoaliooul a1am Ady) Se Paj|9oUBd a19m Jey) S1apio 0} ang

[
i

‘$9Z 0y Aq paseasdap Bunuud

3 0 NOV 2022

“1eak ay) Buunp papiodal Aj0a1100Ul aiam Asy) Se pajjacued aiem Jey) S1apio o) anQ

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH

J ‘ee/ Lo Aq paseaidsp fany

-1eak ay) Buunp papiooal A}oa1100Ul 8iam ABLj) SE PS||SoURD S1am ey} S19pI0 C) ang
'02Z 94 Aq paseasdap Bulsianpy
“1eak ay} Buunp papioosl AI0a1100Ul S19m ABY) SE PS||aouED BJam JBL} SISRIC 0) ang

(penupuog) siosa pouad Jold  ‘¥S

(7414

r44114

sjuawaje)s jeidueul4 [enuuy ay) o} sajoN

ZZ0Z aUNf OS Pepus 1834 U} J0j SIUBLISIE)S (BIDUBULS [BNUUY
Ajjediojunyy jeso ojanele



08

120 £€5 /¥ Aq paseasdsap ssaiBoid ulytop - Juawdinb3 pue juejd ‘Auadoid

'$5816014 Ul JOAN Se payissed Ajjoaliooul Juawdinb] Jaindwo)

'S0 991 SH AQ pesealoul s3assy J8Y30 - Juawdinb3 pue jue)d ‘Ausdold

"Jeak |eloueul 0Z0Z-91 07 WoJ uojenaidap paje|nwinade pue payspods Aueydid] 1o sajsuel Bulag

‘568 ZZ8Y Aq pasealou) sjassy Ajjunwiwod - uoneidasdsg pajenwnody

‘ss91601d U1 YoM SE PaIISSE|D ARoaLIooul sem Jey) Juawdinba seindwod o} Bunejal 0Z0g/610z Ul uolenaldeg

*LE1 S 1LY A pasessoul sjassy a0 - uopeldasdaq pajenwnaoy

‘ploysuodg Aueydidg Jo Jajsuel} ey} pue ssaiboid ul yIom se payisse Aoauooul sem jey) Juawdinba ssjndwad o) Bunejel 0Z0z/610Z Ul uolenaidaq
"Z80 L.6¥ Aq paseaisap jayap pue sniding

*0Z0Z-6L0Z 403 syusunsnipe Buimo|ioj ays Uy Bupinsses pouad 3921109 9y} ul painjdes Jou S3LJUS O} aNP Pajelsal 21om s3inby Jeok Jopd ayy

‘pasies Bulaq siabeuew afppiw Joj sesnuoq saouewioped 0} ang

‘bel 22€ 1 Aq pasealou) suolsiaold

'§$246014 Ul MIOA Japun papnjout Ajsnoinald alam JeL) S1asse Lo 10) pajunodoe Buiaq jou uonenasdap o} ang
‘9€ 1L 09Z L¥ Ag paseasoul uayepdardag

'5$916049 Ul 3JOAA Japun papnjaul Alsnonald a1am Jey) sjasse uo Joj pajunodoe Bulaq jou uoneioaldap o} ang
‘g€l 09Z 1M Aq pesealdu| s}essy JayiO - uonelsaidaqg pajejnuinaady

"slaquieya jIounod uo
uoguajal Jo Buisies pue uohuBIS! JO JUBWARAIBAC 'S)8SSY JOUIQ) Japun PapNdUl U9ag aABY PINOYS Jel) Ssaib0id Ul IONR SB pasojosip A|snolnsid a1am jey) S}asse JO uonedyisse(oal 0} ang

(penunuov) si10449 pousad Jold  “pS

244 zzoe

sjuswWale)sg [eldueul4 [enuuy ayj o) SajoN

22Z0Z 8unp OF papus 12af ay) Joj SJUaWS)e)S [eroueL|q [BNUUY

Ajedidiuny jeooT spapeIR



18

(8v9 126 £1)
681 L6V ¥T
6%S 609 601 |
09G €8 ¥

(z68 216 00 1)
(z65 681 91)
292 165
¥£6 692 |
(689 081 LS)

pajelsoy

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

—

30 NOV 2022

(286 /65 €)
(9r9 v}
6Lz 6LL 2)
095 €2€ ¥
(P22 ¥22€)
(peL 226 1)
szl

P8 Tl
I88 €SS G

1012 Jo uogalcy  Asnolaaid sy

(990 v4€ L) ANIgEl} JUB1IND UOU - SUOISIAOIG
GE€R G96 T suonoesuel} abueyoxa woiy se|genddal apell
89L82L L IL L wawdinby pue jue|d ‘Ayedoid
- woys3 ul pjay Aunosg

snjding pajejnwnoay buuedQ

(819889 100 })
s@i)jigei] JUSLND - SUISINDId

(85v ZL8 ¥1)

L£5 965 suoijoesuel) abueyoxe-uou woJ) sojdealadal sapel)

060 £SL L 8jqeataddy LYA

(920 €2 98) sa|qefed apell
pepodal

uonisod felaueuly Jo Juawalelg

1SMOJ|0} SE sjuauisn(pe Ul s)Nsal ($)10118 8u) JO UONDaLI0D 8yl

‘Jeak 21.07/9102 paie|dwoo pjayspods Aueydid3 jo Jajsuel) buieg

‘662 619 ZH Aq paseassu s)assy Aunwwo) - Juswdinb3 pue jueld ‘Apadoid
/1/910Z Jeak au) ul WoysT Jo) WSwuBiSuoD Ul pjey sjassy 0} ssaif0id u) YIOAA WOl pauajsues) ueaq aaey pinoys Jey) sjoafoid o} ang
*986 99¢ ZH Aq pasEaIIL| WO) ST 10} JUIWUBISUOI Ul p|ay S}asSY
‘pasiubooal Buisq A|snoina.id jou woysy o) pied psodep Aunoas e o} ang
*20€ 102 v Aq pasealouy woxs3 u play ysodap Ajunsag
‘pasiubBooal Alsnomaid Jou wWoys3 ul pjay yisadap Aunaas e 0} anQ

-20€ 10Z pY Aq pasealaul snyding pajeinwnooy Bujuado

-s59.1601d Ul YIOAA SE payisseo Ajoalooul juswdinb3 Jeyndwo)

(ponuyuod) sioise pouad Joud '§S

Loz

(444

sjuawale}s |eidueUl4 [ENUUY 3y} 0} S9JON

ZZ0Z sunf OF Popud Jeak sy} Jo} slualsiels [e1oueuld lenuuy
Ajjedioluniy [eso ajeneIep



Z8

{80z 8z¢ 8iv) - (802 8Z€ 21¥)

(bsz zL1) (ysz2LL) -

(rL1 8€9 L¥L) (€45 691) (LPG 89Y L¥L)
(z9Z v1) (g5 €1) (szL)

(Z69 298 862) 598 008 8 (/65 899 20€)
P.E 666 S {652 219 8) 621 Ll9 Pl

(0] F 2SI AR 4 TA A X § 98% 26l 22
lousp poyodal
pojeisay jo uopoauon Ajsnojnaid sy

woNs3 Ul play Ajunoesg

juswidinba pue ue|d ‘Ajadoid Jo aseyaind
15092 82ueu|4

sJa|ddns pue s)s0o askojldw3

sydigoal Jayln

aWooUl }SaI83U|

JUBWAE)S MO} YSeD

Ste £V 2P 9tL 092 1 602 £8G LY uonepaidag
(ov2 ¥o€ 22) vsz zLl) (98t 26l 22) paAladay jsaselu|
G888 6bF L [AZA 1 P¥9 096 9 snuog - s1s02 aakojdwg
L0z L0E € (000 8) L0 9lee SwIojIuNy
199 ¥61 (p9z 0%) 526 ¥ZT Bupuud
0L 02l i (egL 1) €061l 1 |1an4d
696 614 8l (Zro £82 9) L19 €06 52 Wewnedwi 198
¥88 6.E € 285 /65 € (869 £12) SUOHRNQILOY UOISIACL B)S fupue
S09€LS | (022 9) G/86LG1 BuisiuaApy
. ..{£21 0€0.1) (sz2) (86€ 620 L) awodu| JAYI0
esr GCL vl (se€ 62) 284 ¥SL PL Juswdinba Jo 8oUBUBJUIELL - S32IAISS PSJOBIUDY
9.5 9vL 8C (00s 82) 9,064 82 ypne pue BuluNooE - SAdINIBS PSJOBJUCT
a19 186 (599 2) 182 ¥86 Buls)es - S3IAISS PRIIRIUCT
L8 LGL G (g8 9) ¥OZ €92 6 [ELIB)EW pUE $S3I0IS
910 2eS | 91029S L - uoesusduwod SUSWNION
Z9e vl lE5 €l qcl 1502 82UBUl
adueuopad {ejouBLY JO JUSWAIEIS
(panunuod) siona pouad Joud ‘pS
(4114 z20e

SjuswWwae)s |eldoueUl] |enuuy ay} o} S8joN

2202 3Unf OF Pepus Jeak ay) 10} SJUSWIBIE}S [B1ouURUL] [EnuuY

fAyjedidlunyy jesoT] sjaneje



Matatiele Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

55. Related parties

No transactions occured with related parties that were not at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business during the
current financial year.

When the municipality enters into agreements with service providers who made declarations that close family members or
directors are in service of the State. The municipality considers the transactions to be at an arms length and in the ordinary
course of business.

Awards and payments to persons with relatives in the Matatiele Locat

Municipality:

Bokang Lehiehla, the brother of the General Manager Infrastructure, is a member of - 78 379
Maboka Contractors who were appointed to for the construction of Silo Phase 3.

Mrs Bongeka Mohale, spouse of Clir Polelo Mohale is a director of Sinalo Plastic Bag - 7 900
Manufacturing.

56. Impairment of assets

Impairments

Property, plant and equipment 1113 241 -
The carrying value of assets were assessed at year end and considered impaired as a

result of the Matatiele area being affected by severe weather conditions (floods} during

the current year that resulted in some road infrastructure being significantly affected in

terms of functionality and service delivery.

57. Budget variances

The basis which has been applied in determining material varia 1c? Pﬁs‘?ﬂa y provided reasons where the
municipality has under achieved and for expenditure both over &n un er achieved where it ‘&’ less or more than budget.
EHé ¢k hence we have provided a

The municipality treats employee costs as a major expense in ils

reason for that variance of 6%.

Reasons for budget variances 3 0 NOV 2022
Licences and permits, variance of 61%

Reduction on collection of licences and permits was affected by|loadshedding as it resulted in less fiours worked due to
disturbances on systems.

Other income, variance of 13%

One of the major contributors to other income is the sale of tender documents which did not go as anticipated due to the
prohibition of supply chain procurement processed by National Treasury.

Interest received, variance of 34%

Interest rates on investments made have been lower than anticipated due to interest rates cut that have been implemented by
the South African Reserve Bank.

Interest received, variance of 38%
Interest from outstanding debtors increased due to an increase in the debtors balance.
Property rates, variance of 10%

Property rates collection was affected by the implementation of the Supplementary roll, changes of which included reviews on
property values, property usage and subdivisions.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

57. Budget variances (continued)

Employee related costs, variance of 3%

The variance is due to vacant positions that have not been filted for more than six months.
Remuneration of traditional leader, variance of 35%

This is due new gazetting received that reduced the number of traditional leaders to seat at Council meetings from 8 members
to one member.

Bad Debt Written Off & Debt Impairment, variance of 158%

This is due to increased debt balance in the 2021/22 financial year.

Depreciation & asset impairment, variance of 23%

The varience is due to more provision made on the budget including asset impairment

Finance Charges, variances of 100%

This is due to late payment of Eskom invoices and interest incurred due to non-payment to COIDA.
Other materials, variance of 11%

The procurement of material was affected by circular 15 of 2021-222 on validity of PPR OF 2017 that put on hold procurement
over R30 000 to all organs of state.

Lease rentals on operating lease, variance of 6%
This is due to rental of printers that were not done as planned due to SCM delays.
Contracted services, variance of 5%

The procurement of material was affected by circular 15 of 2021-222 on validity of PPR OF 2017 that put on hold procurement
over R30 000 to all organs of state.

Other expenditure, variance of 18%

The procurement of material was affected by circular 15 of 2021-222 on validity of PPR OF 2017 that put on hold procurement
over R30 000 to all organs of state.

Agency Fees, variance of 100%

The budget provision for Agency fees is part of the Licenses and Permits on the final budget.

VAT receivable,variance of 100%

The budget allocation for the item is included on Other Debtors on the Approved budget as per Mscoa reporting.
Security held in Eskom, variance of 100%

Relates to amount paid to Eskom in the previous year for a deposit on the electrical substation.

Trade receivables from non- exchange transactions, variance of 100%

Budget allocation for the item is under statutory receivables.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021

57. Budget variances (continued)

Loss on disposal of PPE, variance of 100%

This is due to transfer of eskom projects.

Landfill site provision contributions, variance of 100%
This is due to insufficient budget allocated for this item.
Cash and cash equivalents, variance of 112%

Due to more cash at the end of financial year at bank than anticipated on the budget and more investments made during the
2021-22 financial year.

Consumer debtors, variance of 25% AUDITOR GENERAL

TH AR
Due to increased government outstanding electricity debtors. SOU LR R‘CA

Inventory, variance of 10% 3 0 NOV 2[]22 i

This is due to more stock kept at year end than anticipated.

Investment property, variance of 113% ‘

This is due to insufficient budget allocation and classification differences at budget time.

Property, plant and equipment - Capitalised, variance of 100%

The budget allocation for the item is included on Property Plant and Equipment on the Approved budget as per Mscoa reporting
Intangible assets, variance of 81%

This is due to amortisation / write off done in the 2021/22 financial year

Other Non Current Assets, variance of 100%

A budget provision was made for items that are not on Mscoa Chart.

Trade payables, variance of 21%

Due to incomplete projects at year with unpaid retention.

Unspent conditional grants, variance of 100%

The spending on grants was affected by circular 15 of 2021-222 on validity of PPR of 2017 that put on hold procurement over
R30 000 to all organs of state.

Employee benefit obligation, variance of 100%
The budget allocation for the item is included on the approved budget for Provisions as per mSCOA reporting.
Provisions, variance of 25%

Approved budget is inclusive of employee benefit provision.
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2022 2021

57. Budget variances (continued)

Consumer deposits, variance of 13%

The varience is due to insufficient budget allocation for the item.

Revaluation reserve, variance of 175%

The varience is due to impairment loss on revalued assets that was not included in the budget.
Accumulated surplus. variance of 31%

Surplus was less than anticipated on the budget.

Cashflow Variances

Sale of goods and services, variance of 22%

The variance is due to under collection on revenue than anticipated
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, variance of 23%

The variance is due to delayed expenditure on capital . circular 15 of 2021-222 on validity of PPR OF 2017 that put on hold
procurement over R30 000 to all organs of state.

Purchase of intangible assets, variance of 100%

No budget allocation was made for purchase of intangible assets.

Security held in Eskom, variance of 100%

Relates to amount paid to Eskom in the previous year for a deposit on the electrical substation.

Cash and cash equvalents at the beginning of the year, variance of 26%

Variance is due to less expenditure incurred than anticipated.

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget

The municipality approved its budget 2021/2022 on the 27th May 2022. The approved budget was amended with two
adjustments budgets. The first adjustments budget was approved on the 28 February 2022 and the second adjustments budget

was approved on the 28 April 2022 . Detailed reasons for the changes on the approved budget have been presented on the
Adjustments budget reports.
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